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Planning Division
Community & Economic Development Department

To: Historic Landmark Commission

From: Janice Lew, Senior Planner

Date: April 29, 2010

Re: PLNPCM2010-00015 139 E South Temple Street Certificate of

Appropriateness for Major Alterations (Elks Club Building) — A request
by Kent Gibson, representing Property Reserve Inc., to consider alterations to the

front entrance elements, alterations to the basement-level, and construction of an
addition to the east side of the building.

The purpose of this discussion is to gain feedback and direction from the Historic Landmark
Commission on the front entrance elements, so that the applicant can continue to work with

the Architectural Committee and move forward with the remainder of the design of the
project.

On March 3, 2010, the Historic Landmark Commission reviewed preliminary plans for the
above mentioned petition. At that meeting, the Commission expressed diverse remarks

about the proposed project and referred the matter to an Architectural Committee with the
following comments:

e The two enfrances are unique, so it is challenging o consider their removal.

e There are issues of functionality regarding the tunnel, but it has distinctive
architectural details.

e Thereality is, is that it is a struggling building. There is a need to do something so
that it can survive — compromise.

e Respect character defining features and preserve primary fagade, tunnel, and
grade. Crucial elements and the significance of the building would be affected by
change. Responsibility not to lose personality of the City.

¢ Preservation point of view — retain staircases, grade and both entrances. Speaks to
whole social movement of the time.

e Front fagade is integral to the building and needs to stay.

¢ Appropriate kind of addition — needs to be of its own time, more contemporary with
verticality.
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¢ Room to create more modern entrance into the building to the east with terracing.
e Daylight east and west windows.
o Work towards a hybrid design.

The Architectural Committee met on March 31 and made the following comments:

Leave the arch and stairs where located, possibly as a monument.
Concerned about creating a moat.

Plaza between tunnel and stair is a move in the right direction.
Scale down base of building.

The addition could be more contemporary, look like an addition, and not recreate the
old. .

The Architectural Committee met a second time on April 19. The discussion focused on two
options for the front entrance elements. Observations by the Committee include the
following:

¢ Changes were what was asked for, but more of a visual impact and not what is
wanted. The connection to the building was lost.

o Moves front entrance element to a level as a site feature.

¢ Concerned about removing 6ft from the ends of the front piece and creating a
truncated version.

¢ Recreate some meaning for the historic element — fix and repair steps and explain
story. Top of landing should have some meaning.

e Link arch to building — explore options. Recreate tunnel in a new mode.

o The front piece is the one piece of architecture out on the property line. Strong
element that comes right to the sidewalk.

¢ Provide visual connection between the building and front piece — architectural
elements.

e Providing access on main floor would truly respect the front elements.

e Preservation of historic material and urban design issue.

e The wall does serve a purpose and need to create some sense of it. How much of
the wall could be salvaged or recreated? What is the ideal width of the opening?

e Plaza level essentially flat.

Attachment D includes several options that respond to the Architectural Committee’s April
19 discussion regarding the front entrance elements.

Attachments:
A. March 3, 2010 Staff Report
B. March 31, 2010 Renderings
C. April 19, 2010 Renderings

D. April 27, 2010 Submittal
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Attachment A
March 3, 2010 Staff Report
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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

Elks Club Building

Major Alterations
PLNHLC2010-00015
March 3, 2010

Applicant: Kent Gibson,
representative

Staff: Janice Lew, 535-7625
Jjanice.lew@sclgov.com

Tax ID: 09-31-380-020

Current Zone: D-1 Central
Business District

Master Plan Designation:
Business/Commercial

Council District:
District 4 — Luke Garrott

Community Council Chair:
Jim Jenkin

Lot Size: 1.32 acres

Current Use:
commercial/office

Applicable Land Use

Regulations:
e Section 21A.34.020

e Section21A.30

Notification:
e Notice mailed on February
19,2010
o Agenda posted on the
Planning Division and Utah
Public Meeting Notice
websites February 19,2010

Attachments:
A. Application
B. Documentation
C. Photographs

OO,
Planning Division
Department of Community and
Economic Development

Request

The applicant requests Certificate of Appropriate consideration for the Elks
Club Building located at 139 E South Temple Street. The proposed project
includes the removal of the front entrance element, alterations to the basement-
level, and construction of an addition to the east side of the building. The
applicant states the reason for the proposed changes are to bring the building up
to current safety and accessibility standards, make the building viable for future
tenants, and to create a modern entrance.

Potential Motions

No final decision will be made by the Historic Landmark Commission at this
meeting. The purpose of this discussion is to allow the applicant to present the
proposed project, to gain feedback and direction from the Commission, and to
provide an opportunity for the public to comment. This staff report is to
provide information for discussion.

PLNHLC2010-00015 Elks Club Building

Published Date: February 25,2010




VICINITY MAP

Background

Project Description

As originally constructed in 1923, the Elks Club Building was a five-story structure with a full basement. The
building was designed by Carl Scott and George Welsh who had worked for Utah’s famed architect, Richard
Kletting. As the largest club house built in Utah, it housed one of the largest non-Mormon clubs in the state.
The building is of a steel reinforced concrete construction and rectangular in plan. The exterior of the building
features a red striated brick finish with terra cotta details. The front facade has changed little since its original
construction. Significant architectural details of the building include a symmetrical facade that is seven bays
wide, arched bays with fanlight transoms, elks heads in the spandrel panels, keystones, a first story cornice band
with an engaged balustrade, a decorative stone retaining wall, and an arched tunnel entrance to the lower-level.

Various alterations, mostly to the interior of the building, have occurred over the years to accommodate new
uses. An additional floor was built on the roof over the southern portion of the building as well as toward the
rear of the building. A metal-framed glass enclosure two-stories in height was added to the lower portion of the
eastern exterior wall. The window treatment has also evolved overtime. Most windows are aluminum frame
and not original to the building. The arched window openings on both the west and east sides were once
bricked in to accommodate a theater. The brick infill was replaced with glass in 1982. In 1989, the windows on
the west elevation were again replaced and enlarged.
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The proposed project plans include upgrades to the structural, mechanical, and electrical systems. A new stair
and elevator core will provide access to all levels and allow for the removal of the exterior egress stair on the
west side of the building. The applicant proposes to replace the existing addition to the east side of the building
with a 30 foot wide addition that would provide an additional 3,900 square feet of floor space to each of the
existing six building levels. The proposed design of this addition is set back from the plane of the primary
facade and includes stone cladding with brick and stucco detailing. The addition would also assist with the
structural retrofit. '

The applicant proposes to day-light the lower-level of the building to meet the needs of today’s tenants. The
proposed design includes grade changes to accommodate new window openings and a formal front entrance.
The existing masonry fagade would remain intact and the cladding of the new base would be limestone to match
the original stone base of the building. These improvements would also require the removal of the original
lower-level entry elements and site features.

Comments

Public Comment
No public comment regarding this application has been received.

Project Review

Zoning Considerations

The Historic Landmark Commission’s jurisdiction does not relate to the development requirements of the
Zoning Ordinance. All proposed work must comply with height, yard and bulk requirements of the D-1 zoning
district.

Analysis and Findings

Options
The Commission may wish to consider if there is any additional information the applicant should provide that
would assist the Commission in its consideration of the proposed project.

Findings
The applicable Zoning Ordinance standards and design guidelines are listed below to suggest ways that change

to historic buildings can be sensitively accomplished. An in depth review of the proposed project has not been
done at this time. However, staff has identified several issues for discussion below.

21A.34.020 H Historic Preservation Overlay District:

G. Standards for Certificate of Appropriateness for Alteration of a Landmark Site or Contributing Structure.
In considering an application for a certificate of appropriateness for alteration of a landmark site or contributing
structure, the historic landmark commission, or the planning director, for administrative decisions, shall find
that the project substantially complies with all of the following general standards that pertain to the application
and that the decision is in the best interest of the city:

1. A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be used for a purpose that requires minimal change to the
defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment;
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2. The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic materials or
alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided,

Design Standards for Site Features

1.1 Preserve historically significant features. These may include historic retaining walls,
irrigation ditches, gardens, driveways and walkways. Fences and street trees are also examples of
original site features that should be preserved. Sidewalks, parkways, planting strips, street trees
and street lighting are examples of historic streetscape elements that should be considered in all
civic projects.

1.8 Preserve the historic grading design of the site. Altering the overall appearance of the
historic grading is inappropriate. While some changes may be considered, these should remain
subordinate and the overall historic grading character shall be preserved.

Design Standards for Additions

8.1 Design an addition to a historic structure such that it will not destroy or obscure
historically important architectural features. For example, loss or alteration of architectural
details, cornices and eavelines should be avoided.

8.4 Design a new addition to be recognized as a product of its own time. An addition shall be
made distinguishable from the historic building, while also remaining visually compatible with
these earlier features. A change in setbacks of the addition from the historic building, a subtle
change in material, or a differentiation between historic and more current styles are all’
techniques that may be considered to help define a change from old to new construction.
Creating a jog in the foundation between the original building and the addition also may
establish a more sound structural design to resist earthquake damage, while helping to define it
as a later addition.

8.5 Design a new addition to preserve the established massing and orientation of the
historic building. For example, if the building historically had a horizontal emphasis, this
orientation shall be continued in the addition.

8.6 Do not construct a new addition or alteration that will hinder one’s ability to interpret
the historic character of the building or structure. A new addition that creates an appearance
inconsistent with the historic character of the building is inappropriate. An alteration that seeks
to imply an earlier period than that of the building is inappropriate. In addition, an alteration that
seeks to imply an inaccurate variation on the historic style is inappropriate. An alteration that
covers historically significant features is inappropriate as well.

Ground Level Additions

8.14 Keep a new addition physically and visually subordinate to the historic building. The
addition shall be set back significantly from primary facades. A minimum setback of 10 feet is
recommended. The addition should be consistent with the scale and character of the historic
building or structure. Large additions should be separated from the historic building by using a
smaller connecting element to link the two.

3. All sites, structures and objects shall be recognized as products of their own time. Alterations that have no
historical basis and which seek to create a false sense of history or architecture are not allowed;
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Design Standards for Additions

8.4 Design a new addition to be recognized as a product of its own time. An addition shall be
made distinguishable from the historic building, while also remaining visually compatible with
these earlier features. A change in setbacks of the addition from the historic building, a subtle
change in material, or a differentiation between historic and more current styles are all
techniques that may be considered to help define a change from old to new construction.
Creating a jog in the foundation between the original building and the addition also may
establish a more sound structural design to resist earthquake damage, while helping to define it
as a later addition.

8.6 Do not construct a new addition or alteration that will hinder one’s ability to interpret
the historic character of the building or structure. A new addition that creates an appearance
inconsistent with the historic character of the building is inappropriate. An alteration that seeks
to imply an earlier period than that of the building is inappropriate. In addition, an alteration that
seeks to imply an inaccurate variation on the historic style is inappropriate. An alteration that
covers historically significant features is inappropriate as well.

4, Alterations or additions that have acquired historic significance in their own right shall be retained and
preserved;

5. Distinctive features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize a
historic property shall be preserved,;

Design Standards for Additions

8.2 Design an addition to be compatible in size and scale with the main building. Set back
an addition from historically important primary facades in order to allow the original proportions
and character to remain prominent. Keep the addition visually subordinate to the historic
building. Ifit is necessary to design an addition that is taller than the historic building, set it
back substantially from significant facades and use a “connector” to link it.

8.7 When planning an addition to a building, preserve historic alignments that may exist on
the street. Some roof lines and porch eaves on historic buildings in the area may align at
approximately the same height. An addition shall not be placed in a location where these
relationships would be altered or obscured.

6. Deteriorated architectural features shall be repaired rather than replaced wherever feasible. In the event
replacement is necessary, the new material should match the material being replaced in composition, design,
texture and other visual qualities. Repair or replacement of missing architectural features should be based on
accurate duplications of features, substantiated by historic, physical or pictorial evidence rather than on
conjectural designs or the availability of different architectural elements from other structures or objects;

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not be
used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible

8. Contemporary design for alterations and additions to existing properties shall not be discouraged when such
alterations and additions do not destroy significant cultural, historical, architectural or archaeological material,
and such design is compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character of the property, neighborhood
or environment;
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9. Additions or alterations to structures and objects shall be done in such a manner that if such additions or
alterations were to be removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the structure would be
unimpaired. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible in massing, size, scale
and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment;

Design Standards for Additions

8.3 Place an addition at the rear of a building or set it back from the front to minimize the
visual impact on the historie structure and to allow the original proportions and character
to remain prominent. Locating an addition at the front of a structure is inappropriate.

10. Certain building materials are prohibited including the following:

a. Vinyl or aluminum cladding when applied directly to an original or historic material, and
b. Any other imitation siding material designed to look like wood siding but fabricated from an imitation

material or materials;

11. Any new sign and any change in the appearance of any existing sign located on a landmark site or within the
H historic preservation overlay district, which is visible from any public way or open space shall be consistent
with the historic character of the landmark site or H historic preservation overlay district and shall comply with
the standards outlined in Part IV, Chapter 21A.46, Signs;

12. Additional design standards adopted by the historic landmark commission and city council.

Analysis

In order to provide information for discussion, staff has identified the following issues regarding the proposed
project:

1. A series of spaces between the street and building is typical of most historic property particularly
along historic South Temple Street. The progression of streetscape features is important because it
contributes strongly to the historic character of a site and creates a sense of visual continuity on the
block and within the historic district. Landscape features that are important in defining the historic
character of a building site may include fences, walkways, steps, landings, and porches, as well as
unique trees, bushes and topography.

In this case, staff views the historic progression of entry elements a significant character-defining
feature of the site that should be retained. Because the proposed alterations would cause the
removal of the lower-level entrance including the arched tunnel that leads to the basement level of
the building, two sets of exterior stairs over the top of the tunnel, a decorative retaining wall, and the
connecting walkway that leads to the first floor entrance, the project would be incompatible in form
and architectural detail with the historic character of the building, site, and streetscape.

2. The proposed alterations fail to make use of the basic principles recommended by the City’s design
guidelines to ensure that the essential form and integrity of contributing buildings will not be
adversely affected by new construction. Changing the grade adjacent to the front fagade of the
building to allow development of a formerly below-grade area would drastically alter the historic
relationship between the building and its site and setting, and diminish the historic integrity of the
property and its context.
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3. Although the new addition on the east side of the building will be set back from the plane of the
historic building and is clearly a contemporary design, a significant amount of original extetior
material and detail will be lost on what is now a very visible fagade.
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Attachment A
Application
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Documentation
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Heseanj er. Lois Barvis Site No..._SL_16 003
Daté: May 12, 1978
Utah State Historical Society
Historic Preser\/dtlo g RGBS(‘d!(,h Office
Struciure/Shie b

. l .

b reet Address: 139 _Fasi_ South Temple A,_p_)_“_n Bl Lot

Ndlﬂ?— of Structure:  fik's Club T. R. S.

Pmberl’x COwne Elk's Associates .y M

B OWHQ_I_f\_id'eS:g“/o Development Associates, 307 W, 200 §., SLC,__'{}'__tj_ Q{z}_(_)ﬁfﬁdi_b"“

Original Owner: 5. 7.0.F. Construction Date: 1923 Demolition Date:

Original Use: Clubhouse

Present Use: Occupants:

0, Single-Family O Park O Vacant

& Multi-Family O Industrial O Religious

O Public a Agricultural £ Other

DOCUMENTATION

0N =7

(I.-/Commercial

Building Condition:
i Excellant

® Good

O D=-1~r.01a.ed

Prelnmmdr\/ EvalLann
O Sigruficant
@’ Conuibutory

F’hmoqraphy
Date of Shides:

Site
Ruins

Integrity:
0 Unaltered
w"Minor Alterations
a f\/a|or Alterdtlons

Views: Front @ Side O Rear O Other O

Final Reglster %1(1111‘:

0 National Landmark 0O District

I National Register i1 Multi-Resource
O Staie Register 0O Thematic

Date of Photograpns:
Views: Front & Side B"Rear O Other

B

Research Sources:

Abstract of Title
Plat Records

Plat Map

Tax Card & Photo
Building Permit
Sewer Permit
Sanborn Maps

oogogoooag

O City Directories 0O LDS Church Archives

O Biographical Encyclopedias 0O LDS Genealogical Socisty
O Obituary Index 0O UofU Library

O County & City Histories O BYU Library

O Persondl Interviews 0 USU Library

O Newspapers 0 SLC Library

§ Utah State Historical Sociely Library 0 Other

Bibliographical Refaerences (books, articles, records, interviews, old photographs and magps, etc.) -

Potential Sites [Mile,

USHS.
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139 East South Temple-1923
Architect/Builder: < o 0 yaqen
Building Materials;  Pressed briclk Building Type/Sty

Description of physical appearance & significant architectural features:
(Include addilions, alterations, ancillary structures, and landscaping if applicable)

e TLate—Gorhmic—Revivel

See Natiomal Register nomination form (attached).

Originally this was a five story reinforced concrete structure with a full base~
ment, rectangular in plan. The exterior features a veneer of pressed, wire-brushed red
brick with cream terra cotta trim.

The basement originally contained a gymnasium as well as a yefrigeration plant and
heating system. The main entrance was on South Temple Street and opened on to a foyer
and main lobby, 48 feet square. The lobby is done ip square, marble—sheathed columns and
wainscoting and moulded ceiling cornices with gold leafing.

The Elks Club building has recently undergone renovation. Much of the interior of
the building is intact. The upper floors have heen converted to office space. An addi-
tional £loor has been built on the roof, using metal-framed windows, above the parapet
wall. A two story metal-framed glass enclosure has been added on ihe east facade of the
building. A new one story theater structure has algo been added on the east side.

Statement of Historical Significance:

O Aboriginal Americans 0 Communication a Military 0O Religion
O Agriculiure O Conservation O Mining 01 Science
0O Architeciure 0 Education O Minority Groups 0O Socio-Humanitarian
0 The Arts O Exploration/Settlement O Political O Transportation
O Cammerce O Industry O Recreation
This building is the largest club house evey built in the state of Utah. It was

the home of the Elk's Club, one of the largest non~Mormon clubs in Utah.

The Benevolent and Protective Order of ¥lk (B.P.0.E.) a national fraternal organi-—
zation established under that name by Charles A. S. Vivian, in Chicago in 1878. Charles
Vivian was born in England and came to America in 1867, to persue a career in acting.
Vivian founded the "Jolly Corks' in 1867, a fraternal organization which later became the
B.P.O.E. In 1888 Lodge No. 85 was established in Salt Lake City.

From 1888 to 1898 lodge membership remained small. When the lodge was reorganized
in 1899, membership increased and the lodge became omne of the states largest and most
powerful secret societies.

The lodge's four key words were "Charity, Justice, Brotherly Love and Fidelity.”
The Elks participated in many humanitarian projects, such a2z sending aid to the victims
of the Scofield mine disaster.

Tp 1902 the Elk's built a clubhouse om State Street and First South. The Elks
Club grew, in pari because it was made up of non~Mormons who joined to ferdoff their
feelings of social isolation. This four story clubhouse gserved until the memberhip grew
to 3,400 in 1923,

Their present lodge erected in 1923 was evidence to the fact that the Elks Club was
then at the height of its prominence. Their six story building was the largest club houc~
in Utah to date and has not been equalled since. It was also the largest structure buil
in Salt Lake City in the 1920's, a period of economic stagnation. The building cost
$300,000 to build. It was designed by Carl V. Scotit and George W. Welsh vho had worked for
Utah's famed architect, Richard K.A. Kletting. Scott and Welsh alsc designed South High
School and the Masonic Temple on South Temple Street. The building is now an office
building, housing a restaurant, a private club and a movie theatre. -
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“As originally buiit in 1923, the Elks Club was = five-story structure with a full

hasement. It stands in the middle

of a

lot,

181 by 198 feet on the north side of South

Temple Street. Ruilt to funcition as a clubhouse, the building is rvectangular in plan and

u

crame consists of brick and hollow ile.

tilized a stesl reintorced concrete construction. Wall infTill between the skeletal
The exterior of the building features a veneer

of pressed, wire-brushed red brick with cream terra cotia tyim.

Yhen first buile, the basemeni contained =

mnasium as well as a refriqeration, iant
=

and space for ventilating, heating and vacuum Cleaning systems. The main entrance opened
an the first floor to South Temple Street and consisted of a specious foyer which opened
inte a main lobby, forty-eight feet square.
square, marble-sheathed columns and wainscoating, moulded ceiling cornices with gold-
jeafing, and label-type panels on plastered walls. These features all remain.

A library, writing rooms; women's 1ounge,
ware located at the south end of the first floor. A dining rcom 32 by G4 feet, billiards
room 32 by 48 feet, card voom, buffet and kitchen, check room and lavoratories were located

i1 the northern half of the main floora

charnged in some cases.

(lasically appointed, the lobby featured

secretary’s office, private office and vault

These rooms remain, though theiv funcitions have

feading from the main lcbby to the second floor is a grand dtalrway, sheathed in
marble. The second floor originally contained a lodge voom, eighty feet suave, with a
and a gallery capab]@ of seating 200 persons. The
tall 1odae hall was bu11t in theater or auditorium style and featured large beams, Roman-
avched side walls, eight large elk's heads of plaster in the spandrels below the ce1i*ng,
and a sloping floor. A collapsible stage was also an original feature. The second
tloor also contained ten committee and candidate rooms, a memorial room, and a lounging

L1y

seating capacity of 1,300 persons,

room, 32 by 48 feet.

"he third £loor was conprlsed of SlkLeenAlewaLe sleeping and bath rooms for "transit
members.”  Both the fourth and £ifth floors contained sleeping and bath rooms for lodge
members, each flcor containing twenty rooms. -

The Elks Club has recently undergone extensive renovation. The appearance of the
significant interior spaces has not been greatly altered, however Room arramgements,
bearing walls, and the wealth of elaborate decoration Has been :ert intact in most areas.
Some mod;fluatlon of the basement has occurred in ordey to update mechanical systems
and provide an atrium for interior trees which project up throngh an opening cut out in

the center of the lobby above.

The first or main fleoor is essentially intact, although the uses of some of the rooms

have changed. The built-in cabinetry,

dividing the large vroom into two theatres.
-vemodeled somewhat to accommodate 3

“oward the inside of the building a:

leaded-glass windows, €311 ceilings, ornamental
beams and ceiling cornices, wood floors and paneling remain intact. Over the new atrium
cut-out is a mirror and bands of new lights--the only major alteration of the grand lobby
area. The gray marble stairway to the second floor yemains. -The lodge hall is completely
intact, though a curtained wall has been placed down its center £rom front to back.

The second floor Jobby area has been

concessions area. The circular rotunda, square beams
and flower motifs of plaster ave intact,

The upper floors, which contained private
office uses. An additional floor has been built on the roof over the scuthernmost half
of the buiiding. The addition utilizes the original parapet walls for its lower portion
nt wall and has metal-framed windows along the upper poriion of wall.  The exterior

“ornice of the addition consists of a flat, cream- colored stucce band which angles back

e

C

che top.

sleeping rvooms, have been converted to
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Aometal-framed glass enclosure, two-stories in height and contaluing a restaurant,
nas heen added to the lower portion of the eastern exterior wall of the Elk's Club. In
the course of making this addition, arched transoms and window bays in that section
of wall were either filled in or opened to provide access between the old and new parts
of the building. A new one-story theater structure and a concrete stajirway have slso
been added on the property east of the original building. The theater has a low profile
#s 1% is set into the side of the hill wpon which the Elk’s Club stands.

The front facade of the Elk's Club has not changed in appearance since its initial
construction, except for the aforementioned addition. The facade consists of equal areas
of red brick and cream-colored terra cotta which together give striking contrast to the
design. Entirely symmetrical, the facade is %evpn_bdys wide. The first level features
Roman-arched bayq with fanlight transoms, elk heads in the spandrel panels, console
keystones and a First story cornice band with an engaged balustrade.

The second Jevel consists of’fa_Ly narrow windows, with each of the seven bays being

ivided into three sections. - Comice hands with coffered pane?s delineate each floow
level. The fourth level window bays have rounded top corners. Their mullions, like
ithose throughout the entire facade, are deep, allowing for LeceSsed windows. The fifth
Floor windows are the same as those found on the second and third levels. The heavy .
ornamental upper cornice features a frieze with elk symbols and flowers. Under the
projecting cornice is a foliated soffit and an egg-and-dart band. The brick parapet
wall has a simple terra cotta coping. From the ground, the additional story is fairly
inconspicuous, the pattern of its mullions and glass not conflicting greatly with the
vhythm established by the bays below.

The side walls of the Elk's Club have 1rregu147 window schedules featuring wquara
reciangular and round-arched windows placed in arrangements convenlent to interiro
fenestration. A new metal stairway has been built up the west wall of the Elk's Club
near the southwest corner. '

Landscaping is a significant element of the Elk's Club envirvomment. Original features
include a decorative stone retaining wall which runs parallel with South Tempie Strect.
A Roman-arched tunnel begins at the wall and leads to the basement floor of the building.
Two sets of exterior stairs vun over the top of the twwel and join 2t a walkway which
leads to the first floor entrance. A carved stone elk head serves as a keystone piecce
for the arched entry of the tunnel. A secondary stone vetaining wall, complete witl
outdooy urns, forms a small flat patio area from which the building rises.

A reinforced concretce parking structure bas been built north of the Elk's Club. It is
out of view from South Temple Street but can be seen f{rom First Avenue, the next sireet
north.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Elks €lub Building, erected in 1923 as a six-story concrete and brick fraternal
fouse with terra cotta tTlm documents the rise and influence of the B.P.0.Z. in Utah
during the early Twentieth Century As its largely Gentile (nom-Mormon) membership
developed to fill the voids of social isolation, the Elks became one of the state’s
ieading fraternal organizations or "secret societies" and were a positive force
in furthering humanlLarLan causes in and out ‘of the state of Utah. The Elks Club ™~
Byllalng,bas the largest club building of amy kind built in Utah. Its intveresting

exterior facade continues to contribute visually to the special ambiance of Salt Lake
City's historic South Temple Street.

HISTORY:

The Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks (B.P.0.E.) a national fraternal
organizaticn, was £irst established under that name by Charles A. S. Vivian in Chicagc
in 1878. Vivian was born in Exeter, Devonshire County, England, in 1846, his father
being a clergyman for the Church of England. In 1867, Charles VlVlan came ta the
United States to pursue a career in acting. He DT”aanGd a theatre troupe in San-
Francisco and traveled across the nation, gaining national acclaim. (He played the Tole
0% “Admiral” in the original Chicago pTOdUCthD of Gilbert and Sullivan's “Pinafore" at
McVickers Theatre im the fall of 1879 just before his death in TSSOL)

It was in 1867 that Vivian first conceived the idea of organizing a socicty to
promote, protect and enhance the welfare and happiness of each other.v He consequently
founded the **Jolly Corks" which later became the Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks

After being married in 1876, Vivian and his company traveled eastward from Fureka,
Nevada, and est directly to Salt Lake City, rﬂmatn1ng some Iittle time among the
Mormons . My, Vivien organized a lodge there." The "lodge" was one of Vivian's
“Jolly Corks® groups. Interestingly, this Salt Lake City lodge is the first one
mentioned as being founded by Vivian anywhere in the United States in A Biographical

Sketch of Lharleﬂ_ﬁ S. Vivian, perhaps showing the early Utah acceptance of an
ﬂxganlzaulon which eventually obtalned natiomide popularity. The initial OInglZSLJOD
of ihe B.P.O.E. im Utah occurred July 12, 1888, when Lodge No. 85 was established in
Salt Lake City with Martin McIvey as the first Exalted Ruler.

lhe period between 1888 to 1898 was a difficult time for the lodge ahd its smail

Dershlp as activities velated to rapld economic expansion competed for attention. In
¢, however, following a reorganization of the lodge, membership 7ncrgased and the
texmity became one of the state's most poxerful ”Serre“ societles.

ACleely pursuing the intent of its four cywords "Charity, Justice, Brotherly
Love and Fidelity,® the Elks participated in several humanitarian projecis. In 1900
hc lodge was among the first to send aid and relief to the unforitmates who suffered

LEY

(‘x

n the Scofield mine disaster. In 1906, the Salt Lake Lodge sent what was ciaimed to be
hc first carload of food and medicines to reach San Francisco at the time -7 the Great
Flig hegar
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In 190Z, the Elks huilt an impressive four-story lodge hovse on State Street,

one~half block south of Brigham Young's Beehive HOU%D, Lion House, and the Eagle Gate.

It has been suggestﬂ& that the eventual strength of the Elks organization in Utah

stemned at least partially from a sense of social is OlaTiOﬂ Fe[: by Gentiles (non- Tomons
1iving in a.MOTmOH_ﬂOmLMdLed So‘,let)= The razing of Brigham Young's “White Uousc? a
fistoric site built in 1848 as the first bhouse of “style' in Utah, in favor of the
construction of a larger Elks lodge in 192Z-19Z3 qymboILTPq social and SCONORLE

inroads made by the Gentiles through the influentizl Lodge No. 85.

At the time the Elks Club Bulidlng was erected in 1977, menme15h4p of Lodge No. &%
had risen ta 3,400 and several other lodges had been created statewide. The Elks were
at the height of their prominence as evidenced by the fact that their sixsstory
building was the Ilargest club structure built i the state to that date and it has
not been equalled since. In addition, it was also the largest structure of any kind
built in Sait Lake City in the early 1920s, a period ol economic stagnation.

Ocoupying a commanding position on an eIeVdied plece of property on the bigh side
of Salt Lake City's historic South Temnle Street, the Elks Building is ar(hTteciuraLJv
irposing.  Its style does not fit neatly into a standard classification though the front
facade wllf its contrasting brick and terra cotta Yabric and upward-reaching perpendicular

rtakes somewhat of Late Gothic Revival feeling. Built at a cost of $300.000.00,
the Elks Club has a reiuforced concrete structure system and a classically nppointed
interior. The architects Carl W. Scott and George W. Welsh had both worked as engineers
for Richard K. A. Kletting, perhaps Utah's most gifted alcwﬁfer and s strong classicist,
before forming their own firm in 1915. Both architects assisted Kletting with design
work on the Utah State Capitol- in 1914, a Neo-Classical Revival structure, but turned to
more exotic styles such as the Second E gyptian Revival dﬂﬂ Late Cothic Revival after
leaving Keittlng s employ. - Among the best lmown works of the fim of Scott and Welsh
are the & Masonic Ten@lc and South High School. The firm dissolved in 1939 but exists
today in anggnu form under the name of Scott, Louie and Browning. ’
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